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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

Q1. Is it obligatory for a Trade Union to be 

registered in PADOR or it is not obligatory? 

 

 

 

Please note that as specified in Guidelines for 

Applicants (GfA), section 2.2. How to apply and 

the procedures to follow prior registration in 

PADOR for this Call for Proposals is not 

obligatory. Information in PADOR will not be 

drawn upon in the present Call.  

 

Q2. Is the total budget for the project calculated 

with or without VAT (for the cases when VAT 

can be reclaimed)? 

As specified in GfA, section 2.1.5. Eligibility of 

costs: costs that can be included taxes, including 

value added taxes, unless they are not 

recoverable by any means and it is established 

that they are borne by the final beneficiary, are 

listed as ineligible costs. In the cases when VAT 

can be reclaimed, costs within the budget are 

planned without VAT.  

Q3. For services of value of less than 60 000 

eur, can the main applicant request offers from 

three service providers they know of (or 

companies that have good reputation)? Can the 

price of the tender be the main criteria of the 

choice, considering that other criteria, such as 

tenderer’s quality and experience are at the 

satisfactory level? 

 

Q4. Is it needed to include in the application 

three offers for the services for which the 

funding is requested (such as education, 

training, etc.)? If it is required to include offers 

in the application form, can the offers be in a 

free form or is the form prescribed? 

Regarding award of contracts to third parties, 

please note that according to GfA, section 2.1.3. 

Associates and Contractors the grant beneficiaries 

and their affiliated entities are permitted to award 

contracts. Contractors are subject to the 

procurement rules set out in Annex IV to the 

standard grant contract.  

Furthermore, as specified in GfA, section 2.6. 

Conditions for implementation after the 

contracting authority’s decision to award a grant: 

Where implementation of the action requires the 

Beneficiary(ies) and its affiliated entity(ies) (if 

any) to award procurement contracts, it must 

award the contract to the tenderer offering the best 

value for money, that is to say, the best price-

quality ratio, in compliance with the principles of 

transparency and equal treatment for potential 

contractors, care being taken to avoid any conflict 

of interests. To this end, the Beneficiary must 

follow the procedures set out in Annex IV to the 

standard grant contract.  

Regarding inclusion of offers for services to be 

financed through the Action in the Application 

form, please note that at this stage, no such offers 

are to be delivered. For list of documents to be 

completed please see GfA, section 3. List of 

annexes. 
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Q5. When will the payment of the funds take 

place and in which amount? Can it be 

immediately after signing the contract in the 

amount of 80%? Can you please specify the 

maximal number of days for the payment of 

these 80%? When will the remaining 20% be 

paid? After the acceptance of the final report? 

How many days after submitting the report 

(considering there are no objections to the 

report) can the payment be expected? 

As indicated in General Conditions, Articles 15.3 

and 15.4, for the purposes of the initial pre-

financing payment, the signed contract serves as 

payment request. Initial pre financing payments 

shall be made within 30 days of receipt of the 

payment request by the Contracting Authority. 

Furthermore, for payment of the balance please 

consult General Conditions, Article 15.4, Payment 

deadlines.  

Q6. According to the point 6.2 of Annex II, it is 

necessary to submit a communication plan. 

When should the one be submitted? As a 

separate plan along with the full application? Or 

is it enough to include the main points of the 

communication activities in the point 2.1.2 of 

the Full Application Form? 

Main facts of the communication activities within 

the point 2.1.2 of the Full Application Form are 

sufficient. 

Q7. Who fills in the guarantee form and when? According to Annex VIII of the Grant contract the 

pre-financing guarantee form has to be supplied by 

a recognised bank or financial institution 

established in a Member State of the European 

Union. As indicated in the General Conditions, 

Article 15.8 the Contracting Authority may 

request a financial guarantee for the amount of the 

initial pre-financing payment if the grant exceeds 

EUR 60.000. If requested Coordinator is obliged 

to provide financial guarantee.  

Q8. For the reporting, should the actual invoices 

for services and supplies be attached to the 

report or they should be kept and stored by the 

applicant for possible inspections? 

Regarding storing of documents, please consult 

General Conditions, Article 16.7 where it is stated 

that: The Beneficiary(ies) shall keep all records, 

accounting and supporting documents related to 

this Contract for five years following the payment 

of the balance and for three years in case of grants 

not exceeding EUR 60 000, and in any case until 

any on-going audit, verification, appeal, litigation 

or pursuit of claim has been disposed of. 

Furthermore, as indicated in Article 2.1, of the 

General Conditions: The Beneficiary(ies) shall 

provide the Contracting Authority with all 

required information on the implementation of the 

Action. The report shall be laid out in such a way 

as to allow comparison of the objective(s), the 

means envisaged or employed, the results 

expected and obtained and the budget details for 

the Action. The level of detail in any report should 

match that of the Description of the Action and of 

the Budget for the Action. The Coordinator shall 

collect all the necessary information and draw up 

consolidated interim and final reports. 
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Q9. Is the external audit report required? Regarding external audit report, please consult 

General Conditions, Article 15.7, where it is 

specified that the Coordinator must provide an 

expenditure verification report for any final report 

in the case of a grant of more than EUR 100 000. 

 

Q10. In the Full Application Form, part 3.3.3. 

Financial data – for which year should the data 

be filled in? Namely, none of the unions cannot 

have the data for year 2013 by the deadline of 

the call (January 27th) (the official deadline for 

yearly financial report is in the end of February) 

and the only complete financial data the unions 

have are for 2012. 

As indicated in Full Application Form, part 3.3.3., 

financial data for previous and preceding 2 years 

are to be filled in. Since there are no available data 

for the previous year (2013), applicant is to fill in 

financial data for year before previous (2012) and 

preceding 2 years. 

 


